MINUTES OF THE ORDINARY MEETING (HYBRID) OF WICKLOW COUNTY COUNCIL HELD ON MONDAY 9TH MAY 2022, COMMENCING 2.00 PM IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER AND VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS

PRESENT:

COUNCILLORS S. CULLEN CATHAOIRLEACH, T. ANNESLEY, J. BEHAN, V. BLAKE, S. BOURKE, M. CORRIGAN, M. CREAN, A. CRONIN, E. DOYLE, G. DUNNE, A. FERRIS, P. FITZGERALD, A. FLYNN KENNEDY, T. FORTUNE, P. GLENNON, M. KAVANAGH, P. KENNEDY, P. LEONARD, G. MCMANUS, D. MITCHELL, J. MULLEN, M. MURPHY, J. NEARY, D. O'BRIEN, R. O'CONNOR, G. O'NEILL, L. SCOTT, J. SNELL, G. WALSH AND I. WINTERS.

APOLOGIES

CLLRS. P. O'BRIEN AND E. TIMMINS

IN ATTENDANCE:

- MR. B. GLEESON, CHIEF EXECUTIVE
- MS. L. GALLAGHER, DIRECTOR OF SERVICES
- MS. B. KILKENNY, DIRECTOR OF SERVICES
- MR. M. NICHOLSON, DIRECTOR OF SERVICES
- MR. J. LANE, DIRECTOR OF SERVICE
- MS. L. EARLS, DIRECTOR OF SERVICES
- MS. B. MCCARTHY, A/HEAD OF FINANCE
- MR. S. DOYLE, A/HEAD OF INFORMATION SYSTEMS
- MR. J. BOWES, SENIOR ENGINEER
- MR. M. FLYNN, SENIOR ENGINEER
- MR. M. DEVEREUX, SENIOR ENGINEER
- MS. H. FALLON, SENIOR ENGINEER
- MS. S. WALSH, SENIOR PLANNER
- MS. D. FORDE, PROJECT LIAISON OFFICER
- MS. H. PURCELL, SENIOR EXECUTIVE OFFICER/MEETINGS ADMINISTRATOR
- MS. C. FLOOD, SENIOR EXECUTIVE OFFICER
- MS. H. DENNEHY, SENIOR EXECUTIVE OFFICER
- MR. M. RICHARDSON, CIVIL DEFENCE OFFICER
- MR. M. CARROLL, ASSISTANT CIVIL DEFENCE OFFICER
- MS. A. MINION, ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER
- MS. K. KENNEDY, ASSISTANT PLANNER
- MR. L. CULLEN, TECHNICIAN GRADE 1
- MS. T. BYRNE, ASSISTANT STAFF OFFICER

At the commencement of the meeting a roll call was taken. The Meetings Administrator advised of meetings etiquette for online meetings and that the press and some members of the public were also present.

Votes of Sympathy

Elected Members passed a vote of sympathy to the families of the late Mr. Alan Gillis, Mr. Patsy Vickers, Mr. Sean O'Brien, Ms. Lillian Clowery, Mr. Ultan McCabe, Mr. Jack Smith, Mr. Robert Kearns, Mr. Danny Hatton and Mr. Frank Rennix. A minutes silence was observed for the deceased.

The Cathaoirleach welcomed Ms. L. Earls and wished her success in the future in her new role as Director of Service, Transportation, Water & Emergency Services Directorate. He then went on to pay tribute and congratulate Ms. Katie Taylor on her recent victory in the boxing ring and said that she is an inspiration and great role model for young people. Elected Members present added their congratulations and agreed to send a letter of congratulations to Ms. Taylor.

The Cathaoirleach congratulated the staff of Wicklow County Council on their success at the LAMA awards in which Wicklow County Council was awarded overall Council of the Year. Wicklow County Council were also successful in 6 other categories including: Gold in Best Environmental or Ecological Project; Gold in Best Housing Initiative; Silver – Wicklow Tourism passport; Silver – Health Initiative; Silver – Arklow Court House; and Silver – Enterprise.

ITEM NO. 1

To confirm and sign minutes of Ordinary Meeting of Wicklow County Council held o Monday 7th March 2022.

It was proposed by Cllr. G. Dunne, seconded by Cllr. V. Blake and agreed to confirm and sign minutes of ordinary meeting of Wicklow County Council held on Monday 7th March 2022.

ITEM NO. 2

To confirm and sign minutes of Special Meeting of Wicklow County Council held on Monday 21st March 2022.

It was proposed by Cllr. J. Snell, seconded by Cllr. A. Flynn-Kennedy and agreed to confirm and sign minutes of special meeting of Wicklow County Council held on Monday 21st March 2022.

ITEM NO. 3

To confirm and sign minutes of Special Meeting of Wicklow County Council held on Monday 28th March 2022.

It was proposed by Cllr. D. O'Brien, seconded by Cllr. P. Kennedy and agreed to confirm and sign minutes of special meeting of Wicklow County Council held on Monday 28th March 2022.

ITEM NO. 4

To confirm and sign minutes of Special Meeting of Wicklow County Council held on Tuesday 29th March 2022.

It was proposed by Cllr. P. Fitzgerald, seconded by Cllr. T. Annesley and agreed to confirm and sign minutes of special meeting of Wicklow County Council held on Tuesday 29th March 2022.

ITEM NO. 5

To confirm and sign minutes of Ordinary Meeting of Wicklow County Council held on Monday 4th April 2022.

It was proposed by Cllr. J. Snell, seconded by Cllr. G. Walsh and agreed to confirm and sign minutes of ordinary meeting of Wicklow County Council held on Monday 4th April 2022.

ITEM NO. 6

To consider the disposal of property situated at 11 Gilbert's Row, Rathdrum, Co. Wicklow comprised in Folio WW8503F being the property known as 11 Gilbert's Row, Rathdrum, Co. Wicklow to Mr. Bill Porter, Ms. Lin Ryan, Ms. Ann O'Loughlin, Ms. Mary Loughlin and Ms. Ann Savage as Trustees of Rathdrum Cancer Support Group.

It was proposed by Cllr. P. Kennedy, seconded by Cllr. P. Fitzgerald and agreed to dispose of property situated at 11 Gilbert's Row, Rathdrum, Co. Wicklow comprised in Folio WW8503F being the property known as 11 Gilbert's Row, Rathdrum, Co. Wicklow to Mr. Bill Porter, Ms. Lin Ryan, Ms. Ann O'Loughlin, Ms. Mary Loughlin and Ms. Ann Savage as Trustees of Rathdrum Cancer Support Group as set out in statutory notice circulated.

<u>ITEM NO. 7</u>

To consider the disposal of 0.0017 hectares or thereabouts of land situated in the townland of Wicklow, Co. Wicklow at the rear of 3 Lakeview Grove, Wicklow Town, Co. Wicklow comprised in Folio No. WW26778F to Mr. Michael Canavan of 3 Lakeview Grove, Wicklow Town, Co. Wicklow

It was proposed by Cllr. G. Dunne, seconded by Cllr. J. Snell and agreed to dispose of 0.0017 hectares or thereabouts of land situated in the townland of Wicklow, Co. Wicklow at the

rear of 3 Lakeview Grove, Wicklow Town, Co. Wicklow comprised in Folio No. WW26778F to Mr. Michael Canavan of 3 Lakeview Grove, Wicklow Town, Co. Wicklow as set out in statutory notice circulated.

<u>ITEM NO. 8</u>

To consider the disposal of property situated in the townland of Knockanrahan Lower and Knockanrahan Upper, Arklow comprised in Folio No. 2488L being the property known as 80 Fernhill, Arklow, Co. Wicklow by Transfer Order to Ms. Eileen Molloy of 80 Fernhill, Arklow, Co. Wicklow, the person entitled to the freehold interest in the property.

It was proposed by Cllr. P. Fitzgerald, seconded by Cllr. S. Bourke and agreed to dispose of property situated in the townland of Knockanrahan Lower and Knockanrahan Upper, Arklow comprised in Folio No. 2488L being the property known as 80 Fernhill, Arklow, Co. Wicklow by Transfer Order to Ms. Eileen Molloy of 80 Fernhill, Arklow, Co. Wicklow, the person entitled to the freehold interest in the property as set out in statutory notice circulated.

ITEM NO. 9

To consider the disposal of property situated in the townland of Arklow, Co. Wicklow comprised in Folio No. WW4065 Co. Wicklow being the property known as 15 Collins Street, Arklow, Co. Wicklow by Transfer Order to Mr. Paul Canavan of 23 Oaklands, Arklow, Co. Wicklow and Ms. Margaret Canavan of 150 Belmont, Southern Cross, Bray, Co. Wicklow, the persons entitled to the freehold interest in the property.

It was proposed by Cllr. P. Fitzgerald, seconded by Cllr. M. Murphy and agreed to dispose of property situated in the townland of Arklow, Co. Wicklow comprised in Folio No. WW4065 Co. Wicklow being the property known as 15 Collins Street, Arklow, Co. Wicklow by Transfer Order to Mr. Paul Canavan of 23 Oaklands, Arklow, Co. Wicklow and Ms. Margaret Canavan of 150 Belmont, Southern Cross, Bray, Co. Wicklow, the persons entitled to the freehold interest in the property as set out in statutory notice circulated.

ITEM NO. 10

To consider the disposal of 0.023 hectares of land or thereabouts situated in the townland of Kilmacanogue North, Wicklow comprised in Folio WW36097F (part) Co. Wicklow, being a plot of ground adjacent to No. 50 Rockfield Park, Kilmacanogue, Co. Wicklow to Mr. David Mahon, No. 50 Rockfield Park, Kilmacanogue, Co. Wicklow.

It was proposed by Cllr. D. O'Brien, seconded by Cllr. M. Corrigan and agreed to dispose of 0.023 hectares of land or thereabouts situated in the townland of Kilmacanogue North, Wicklow comprised in Folio WW36097F (part) Co. Wicklow, being a plot of ground adjacent to No. 50 Rockfield Park, Kilmacanogue, Co. Wicklow to Mr. David Mahon, No. 50 Rockfield Park, Kilmacanogue, Co. Wicklow as set out in statutory notice circulated.

ITEM NO. 11

To consider the disposal of property in the townland of Wicklow Town, Co. Wicklow being the property situated at 30 Seafield, Wicklow Town, Co. Wicklow by Deed of Conveyance to the Legal Representative of Mr. John O'Sullivan, the person entitled to the freehold interest in the property.

It was proposed by Cllr. G. Dunne, seconded by Cllr. J. Snell and agreed to dispose of property in the townland of Wicklow Town, Co. Wicklow being the property situated at 30 Seafield, Wicklow Town, Co. Wicklow by Deed of Conveyance to the Legal Representative of Mr. John O'Sullivan, the person entitled to the freehold interest in the property as set out in statutory notice circulated.

<u>ITEM NO. 12</u>

To note the Annual Financial Statement 2021 and to approve by resolution (i) additional net expenditure in excess of budget in accordance with Section 104(7) of the Local Government Act 2001 and (ii) transfers to and from Capital.

Ms. B. McCarthy, Acting Head of Finance gave a short overview of the Annual Financial Statement 2021 as follows:

- In what was again a difficult year, the Annual Financial Statement for 2021 displays a
 positive picture for Wicklow County Council. The revenue account generated a
 surplus of €358,000 which has brought our cumulative deficit down to €1.3 million. It
 is important to continue to reduce the accumulated revenue deficit in line with the
 recommendation in the Statutory Audit Report.
- Strong performance in debt collection was evidenced with the collection percentage for rates increasing to 83% from 70% while the loans collection percentage increased to 83% from 80% and the rents percentage was maintained at 85%.
- A lot was achieved through revenue and capital expenditure during the year and some of the notable actions and initiatives are outlined in the Chief Executive Financial Review on pages 6 and 7 of the AFS document.
- Under Section 104 (7) of the Local Government Act 2001, the Elected Members need to approve the additional net expenditure in excess of budget. These are outlined on pages 5 and 26 of the AFS. The main overruns are in Housing of €1.2m due primarily to increased expenditure on housing repairs and reduced income in Homeless and HAP; in Roads of €.9m due to additional expenditure on regional roads and public lighting and reduced income on car parking, and in Environment €.8m which is due to additional expenditure across a number of environmental operations such as landfill, recycling and street cleaning. Net expenditure also exceeded budget in Development Management €218k, Recreation and Amenity €104k and Agriculture, Education, Health and Welfare 79k.

- Elected Members approval is also required for transfers to and from capital as outline on page 5 and 26 of the AFS. The most significant transfers from revenue to capital are for an ongoing provision to cover future appeals to the Valuation Tribunal relating the rates revaluation (€2.6m) charged to Miscellaneous Services and for the provision for match funding requirements (€1.0m) charged to Development Management.
- The most significant transfers from capital are from revaluation appeals provision to fund rates income reductions (€1.3m) credited to Miscellaneous Services and from internal capital receipts to fund pre-letting expenditure (€0.7m) credited to Housing & Building.

It was proposed by Cllr. G. Dunne, seconded by Cllr. P. Fitzgerald and agreed by all present to approve the additional net expenditure in excess of budget and the transfers to and from capital for Annual Financial Statement 2021.

ITEM NO. 13

To consider the Chief Executive's Monthly Management Report, April 2022.

Elected Members were circulated with the Chief Executive Monthly Management Report April 2022.

Elected Members raised questions which were responded to by the Chief Executive and the relevant Director of Services.

ITEM NO. 14

To receive a presentation on Wicklow Civil Defence

Mr. M. Carroll, Assistant Civil Defence Officer gave a presentation covering the following areas:

- Who are Civil Defence?
 - Government 2015 White Paper on Defence continues to develop and support Civil Defence.
 - Policy Document Towards 2030.
 - Managed by Local Authority.
 - o Transport, Water & Emergency Services.
 - Department of Defence.
 - Civil Defence Policies & Planning, Training, Procurement & Funding.
 - Provide support and assistance to the Principle Response Agencies and local communities across the county.

- o 50 active members.
- Support and assist other voluntary organisations.
- o RNLI, Coastguard, DWMRT & Order of Malta.
- HQ and main Training Centre Greystones.
- Units also based in Baltinglass.

• What we do

- First Aid at local & national events.
- Drone support for missing persons and support the Local Authority (Fire Service).
- o E.M.I.L.Y. Sonar Platform supports in missing persons searches.
- o Response to severe weather.
- Support the Local Authority in times of severe flooding.
- Operate local and national independent radio systems (Tetra, Digital UHF & VHF Marine).

Core Services

- Search and rescue.
- Medical response.
- o Emergency response.
- Community assistance.
- o Radiation monitoring.
- CISM Critical Incident Stress Management.
- Dealing with the after effects faced by victims or rescuers of a traumatic incident.
- Each Local Authority has a Civil Defence member trained to deliver peer support locally.

Activity 2021

- Assisted the Local Authority Roads Department with Drone Support for new road projects throughout the County.
- Provided First Aid Cover at the request of WCC Sports Partnership for local events.
- Assisted Wicklow Fire Service with Drone support on Scar Mountain during wildland fire and support at flooding event in Kilcoole
- Assisting Arklow Gardaí with a Missing Person Search Brittas Bay & Newtownmountkennedy, Wicklow.
- Supported Wexford and Kilkenny Civil Defence with a Missing Person Search in New Ross on the river Barrow with E.M.I.L.Y Sonar and Drone Support.
- Assisted the Local Authority Roads Department with Drone Support for new road projects throughout the County.
- Provided First Aid Cover at the request of WCC Sports Partnership for local events.
- Assisted Wicklow Fire Service with Drone support on Scar Mountain during wildland fire and support at flooding event in Kilcoole
- Assisting Arklow Gardaí with a Missing Person Search Brittas Bay & Newtownmountkennedy, Wicklow.
- Supported Wexford and Kilkenny Civil Defence with a Missing Person Search in New Ross on the river Barrow with E.M.I.L.Y Sonar and Drone Support.

The Chief Executive along with the Elected Members thanked Mr. M. Richardson, Civil Defence Officer and his crew for all the work they have done and continue to do particularly in recent weeks setting up the Rest Centre for Ukrainian refugees in Arklow at short notice.

ITEM NO. 15

Correspondence

Ms. H. Purcell advised the Elected Members of the following:

Circular Letter LG03/2022 Attendance requirements for Elected Members which
relates to a previous Circular Letter 04/2020 which outlines specific circumstances
for exemptions from the 80% attendance requirements from the Elected Members
in order to qualify for full payment of allowance. As per Circular Letter LG03/2022
those exemptions are now gone with effect from the 1st May 2022.

it was proposed by Cllr. J. Behan, seconded by Cllr. J. Mullen and agreed by all to extend the meeting to 5.30 p.m.

ITEM NO. 16

Notice of motion number 1

Notice of Motion in the name of Cllr. A. Ferris (proposer), seconded by Cllr. P. O'Brien (22nd July 2021)

'It is the policy of Wicklow County Council not to purchase goods or services produced or provided, in whole or part, (as practicable), from illegally occupied territories by illegal settlers, and that any such contracts should cease as soon as allowed'.

Following a broad discussion, the notice of motion 'It is the policy of Wicklow County Council not to purchase goods or services produced or provided, in whole or part, (as practicable), from illegally occupied territories by illegal settlers, and that any such contracts should cease as soon as allowed' proposed by Cllr. A. Ferris, seconded by Cllr. P. O'Brien was put to a vote and following a roll call was defeated by a margin of 6 for, 9 against, 8 not present and 9 abstained viz:

FOR 6	CLLRS., A. FERRIS, G. MCMANUS, D. O'BRIEN, G. O'NEILL, L. SCOTT AND
	J. SNELL
AGAINST 9	CLLRS. T. ANNESLEY, J. BEHAN, V. BLAKE, S. BOURKE, S. CULLEN, P.
	FITZGERALD, A. FLYNN-KENNEDY, P. KENNEDY AND G. WALSH
NOT PRESENT 8	CLLRS. M. CREAN, A.CRONIN, G. DUNNE, P. GLENNON, J. NEARY, P.
	O'BRIEN, E. TIMMINS AND I. WINTERS

ABSTAINED 9	CLLRS. M. CORRIGAN, E.DOYLE, T. FORTUNE, M. KAVANAGH, P.
	LEONARD, D. MITCHELL, J. MULLEN, M. MURPHY AND R. O'CONNOR

Notice of motion number 2

Notice of motion in the name of Cllr. M. Crean (12th August 2021)

'That Wicklow County Council webcast council meetings in the interests of democracy, transparency and accessibility'

It was agreed to defer this notice of motion to the meeting of 13th June 2022 as Cllr. M. Crean was not present.

Notice of Motion number 3

Proposed by Cllr. P. O'Brien, seconded by Cllr. A. Ferris (3rd January 2022)

'Wicklow County Council is calling on the Minister for Justice to introduce legislation for stricter penalties on those that are found guilty of damaging or tampering with defibrillators and life buoys.

Damage to, or theft of a defibrillator/life buoy are installed for public use could be a death sentence for a patient if they were not available for a patient in cardiac arrest or a life buoy if drowning. It is that serious. Locking up AEDs or life buoys isn't the ideal solution – you wouldn't lock up a fire extinguisher'.

It was agreed to defer this notice of motion to the meeting of 13th June 2022 as Cllr. P. O'Brien was not present.

Notice of Motion number 4

Proposed by Cllr. M. Corrigan, seconded by Cllr. A. Flynn-Kennedy (14th February 2022)

'That Wicklow County Council looks at implementing the 'space finder' app which is currently being trialed by Limerick City & County Council. The technology gives real time information on where free parking spaces are located and is supported by the Disabled Drivers Association of Ireland (DDAI).

And that this Council in all new Council facilities adds a Hidden Disability Parking space to acknowledge and support, and make it more accessible for individuals with a hidden disability. This parking space should be slightly wider than normal spaces, be near a lift and have a universal Disability sign to differentiate it'.

RESPONSE:

There are no plans at present to introduce this app or anything similar by alternative suppliers. Each Municipal District manages their own parking facilities and can consider the app and hidden disability parking spaces when planning future car parks. In order to introduce this app costing in full, GPS and resourcing requirements would have to be identified and included in budget proposals at a later date.

It was proposed by Cllr. M. Corrigan, seconded by Cllr. A. Flynn-Kennedy and agreed by to refer this notice of motion back to the Transportation, Water & Emergency Services SPC and to also request feedback from Limerick City & County Council.

Notice of Motion number 5

Proposed by Cllr. A. Ferris, seconded by Cllr. P. O'Brien (7th February 2022)

'That the Library Service purchase 'Reader Pens' and make them available to people using the library services across Co. Wicklow'.

Response:

"C-Pens are a recent product that assists people with dyslexia, and reading difficulties. At this time, a minority of local authorities have made them available through their library service.

Despite the cost being €300 each, Wicklow County Council Library Service plans to purchase 20 of these and make them available for borrowing at each of its 13 libraries + mobile library (2 each in our 6 full time libraries and 1 in each part time library + mobile).

Addressing dyslexia features highly on Wicklow County Council's agenda, with the software programmes of "Lexia" and "Touch, Type, read, Spell" (TTRS) available online from each of our libraries. These products were introduced to all 83 primary schools and 21 post-primary schools and 4 Special Ed schools in county Wicklow since 2018. We have had great feedback on the benefits of both from parents and teachers. Wicklow County Council is regarded as the pioneers of these online products, and our library staff has given presentations on them at a national library conference.

The availability of C-Pens will add a further dimension to addressing reading challenges encountered by many".

Mr. M. Nicholson, Director of Service advised the Elected Members that following a lengthy discussion it was agreed to purchase the C-Pens.

Notice of Motion number 6

Proposed by Cllr. A. Ferris, seconded by Cllr. P. O'Brien (4th March 2022)

'To ask the Chief Executive if he can seek a report from Irish Water on their capital expenditure in the Wicklow Council area since 2016 and seek information as to which

projects were funded through the 1% for Arts Scheme. Furthermore, can the Chief Executive contact Irish Water requesting an update on how they intend to deliver any balance of that 1% due to our Council area'.

Response:

Irish Water submitted a report on capital expenditure since 2014 which can be circulated to the Elected Members.

In relation to the Percent for Arts Scheme, this scheme pre-dates Irish Water and was administered via each Local Authority. Irish Water undertook to honor any existing commitments which it inherited on existing projects on 01 January 2014. In coordination with the Water Services Transition Office (WSTO), it sought to clarify and confirm what projects were eligible for Per Cent for Art scheme funding according to a number of key criteria, as follows:

- i. The Per Cent for Art scheme in question relates to a water or wastewater scheme and
- ii. That there was a construction budget allocated by the DECLG that showed an allowance for the Per Cent for Art scheme and
- iii. There was a contractual commitment made to a person/persons/company to produce something to be funded by the Per Cent for Art scheme.
- iv. Irish Water clarified the position further (through WSTO) for the Local Authorities.

In circumstances where a Local Authority had entered into a contractual arrangement for a Per Cent for Art scheme post 01 January 2014, without a construction budget allocation from the DECLG, the liability for scheme finance rested with the Local Authority.

On future projects, Irish Water will not allocate funding for a Per Cent for Art scheme. There are a number of reasons for this including the need for Irish Water to target expenditure on key areas where the water and wastewater infrastructure requires significant improvement for the consumer. Irish Water is prioritising expenditure on improving and securing a safe water supply. Key areas such as water and wastewater infrastructure are being targeted in line with objectives outlined in the Irish Water Business Plan (e.g. lower level of boil water notices, increased compliance levels, lower level of major pollution incidents and reduced supply interruptions).

Irish Water do not provide for Per Cent for Art within their work with and on behalf of Local Authorities. Clarification was sought on this at the inception of Irish Water and it has been the case since the transfer that 1% has not been applied to any schemes nationally.

There is currently a national review of the Per Cent for Art process which is an opportunity to mention this and ask the Government to give it further consideration.

Cllr. A. Ferris requested that the Irish Water Report and response be circulated to the Elected Members.

Notice of Motion number 7

Proposed b Cllr. A. Ferris, seconded by Cllr. P. O'Brien (22nd March 2022)

'That Wicklow County Council calls on the Ministers for Justice; Education; and Children, Disability, Equality & Integration to immediately implement an Operation Encompass-style programme between An Garda Siochana and schools.

Operation Encompass is a police-led, school-based early intervention safeguarding scheme which supports children and young people who experience Domestic Abuse. Operation Encompass was created to ensure that by the start of the next school day, a child's school will be informed that there has been a police-attended incident of domestic abuse at the home of the child. The child is then supported immediately upon arrival at school. In 2020, Women's Aid (Ireland) reported that there were 30,841 disclosures of abuse including 5,948 were against children. We need to support these children now'.

It was proposed to amend the motion to include the word 'youth' by Cllr. A. Ferris, seconded by Cllr. D. O'Brien and agreed as amended, to write to the Irish Government Departments of Justice; Education; and Children, Disability, Equality, Integration and Youth.

A discussion on the amount of notices of motion an Elected Member could have listed on the agenda and the relevance of motions to the Council took place. Ms. H. Purcell referred to the Standing Orders in this regard.

THIS CONCLUDED THE BUSINESS OF THE MEETING

CLLR. SHAY CULLEN

CATHAOIRLEACH

WICKLOW COUNTY COUNCIL

MS. HELEN PURCELL

SENIOR EXECUTIVE OFFICER/

MEETINGS ADMINISTRATOR

Confirmed at meeting of Wicklow County Council held on Monday the 13th June 2022